
Health and Social Care Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 1 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 

Thursday, 26 June 2014  

 

Meeting time: 

09.15 

 

For further information please contact:  

Llinos Madeley / Helen Finlayson 

Committee Clerk 

029 2089 8403/8600 

HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions   

2 Inquiry into progress made to date on implementing the Welsh 

Government’s Cancer Delivery Plan: Evidence session 7 (09.15 - 10.15) 

(Pages 1 - 19)  

 

Mark Drakeford AM, Minister for Health and Social Services 

Grant Duncan, Deputy Director Healthcare Policy Division 

Chris Jones, Deputy Chief Medical Officer 

Carys Thomas, National Institute for Social Care and Health Research (NISCHR)  

3 Papers to note  (Pages 20 - 26) 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting   

5 Consideration of the Committee's approach to its inquiry into legal 

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



highs (10.15 - 10.45) (Pages 27 - 36) 



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



 

1 
 

Health and Social Care Committee 

Date: 04 June 2014 

Title: Progress made in implementing the Cancer Delivery Plan in Wales 

Purpose 

1. This paper provides evidence for the Health and Social Care Committee’s one-
day inquiry into the progress made in implementing the Cancer Delivery Plan in 
Wales. 

 
Background 
 

2. We are making good progress in implementing the Cancer Delivery Plan. The 
second Together for Health Cancer Delivery Plan Annual Report, published in 
January 2014, highlights progress made in cancer services in Wales over the 
past 12 months and identifies areas for future improvement. The report can be 
accessed here: 

 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/health/publications/health/reports/cancer-plan/?lang=en   
 

3. The national Cancer Delivery Plan is underpinned by collaborative working with 

NHS Wales and the third sector.  Each health board now has a local delivery 

plan informed by national actions.  

Achievement of the outcomes and performance measures by 2016  

4. The Cancer Delivery Plan, as well as our other delivery plans for major health 

conditions, provides a strong methodology to drive improvement in services. 

The implementation of the plan, with its small number of key actions and an 

emphasis on patient outcomes, rather than processes, has the support of the 

cancer community and provides a strong focus for coordinated activity. The 

preparation of local plans by Health Boards has improved the accountability of 

cancer services through greater transparency allowing greater scrutiny at a local 

level.    

5. The cancer implementation group has an important role in monitoring progress 

against the plan.  The transparent publication of reports and plans means that 

local communities, organisations and other groups are also able to challenge 

health boards on progress.    

6. Progress against the outcomes and performance measures is set out in the 

annual report. The report highlights good progress against the measures in the 

plan in particular:   

Pack Page 15

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/health/publications/health/reports/cancer-plan/?lang=en


 

2 
 

 Wales has shown the biggest improvement in cancer survival among the four 
countries of the United Kingdom, at 14% for one-year relative survival and 15% 
for five-year survival, from 1995-99 up to 2005-09 and 2001-05 respectively; 
 

 There has been a 5% increase in recruitment to clinical trials and over the past 
12 months; tissue donations to the Wales Cancer Bank increased by 3.4%. We 
have already passed the target set for 2016  in the delivery plan; 

 

 The delivery plan set a target of achieving 70% cancer staging by 2013-14 and 
we have achieved 73%; 
 

 At the all-Wales level, performance against the 31-day target for those patients 
referred to hospital for reasons other than suspected cancer, but are 
subsequently diagnosed with cancer has been achieved in eight out of nine 
months since July 2013; 

 

 We need to build on improvements against the 62-day target for those patients 
newly diagnosed with cancer.  Performance has been around 90% since October 
2013, dipping in March 2014 to 88%. However the number of people treated has 
increased. In the period April 2013 – March 2013, 5,500 patients were treated, of 
whom 4,718 were treated in the target time. During the same period in 2013-14 
(April 2013 – March 2014), 6,146 patients were treated, of whom 5,391 were 
treated in target.  All health boards have committed to working towards the 62-
day as part of their integrated plans and delivery is being monitored closely to 
ensure plans fully meet expectations. 

 
7. Since the publication of the report in January, Bowel Screening Wales achieved 

its target of 60% uptake in February 2014 and is on course to sustain this 
performance. 

 
8. It is important to note that while the cancer implementation group provides an 

important function in monitoring the delivery of services it is only one element of 
monitoring the quality of services. Central performance management against 
targets, national clinical audit, peer review, as well as public challenge, all play a 
part in providing assurance and driving up the quality of services.  

 
Inequalities in cancer incidence and mortality 
 

9. Inequalities between socioeconomic groups and geographic areas for cancer 
incidence and mortality are related to the wider social determinants of health 
and health inequalities. We need to make further inroads in responding to these 
challenges, with action on a number of fronts, including empowering individuals 
to take greater responsibility for their own health, tackling the inverse care law 
and effectively targeting our interventions at the hardest to reach groups.  

 
10. Work on the wider determinants of health, such as smoking, diet, alcohol and 

exercise are crucial to support behavioural change to reduce the incidence of 
cancers. 

 

Pack Page 16



 

3 
 

11. Officials are working with colleagues in Cardiff University on a research 
proposal to develop and pilot an evaluation of the Tenovus health check: a 
targeted cancer awareness intervention for people from deprived communities. 
This work is linked to the national awareness and early diagnosis Initiative. 
 

12. A number of our public health programmes also have a role in raising 
awareness of risk factors for a number of health conditions, including cancer. An 
example is the ‘Add to Your Life’ online health and wellbeing checks for people 
over 50, which takes a holistic approach by providing people with information 
and advice on a range of issues. In addition to information and advice on 
general risk factors, the assessment also includes questions aimed at raising 
awareness of specific types of cancer, which are particularly relevant to this age 
group, as well as raising awareness ofscreening opportunities.  

 
13. The ‘Add to Your Life’ programme, led by Public Health Wales, has also been 

developed to incorporate additional steps for maximising participation and 
ensuring all social groups are supported to access it.  For example, my 
department is working in partnership with the department for Communities and 
Tackling Poverty to provide targeted community support in Communities First 
areas.  

 

14. Earlier this year the National Assembly for Wales passed three Legislative 

Consent Motions (LCMs) which allowed four amendments to the Children and 

Families Bill to extend to Wales. All the amendments were passed and are now 

part of the Children and Families Act. These cover retail packaging of tobacco 

products, proxy purchase of tobacco products, age of sale for electronic 

cigarettes and smoking in cars carrying children. Officials are working closely 

with Department of Health officials in England regarding proxy purchase of 

tobacco products and age of sale and proxy purchase of e-cigarettes. Officials 

are also discussing smoking in vehicles carrying children so if we decide to 

move on this matter in Wales we will be able to proceed in parallel with 

England. 

15. We have also launched a consultation on our Public Health White Paper 

Listening To You – Your Health Matters. The consultation period started on April 

2nd and closes on June 24th. The White Paper is seeking views on four specific 

tobacco issues;the creation of a tobacco retailers’ register; the use of electronic 

cigarettes in enclosed or substantially-enclosed public places; smoke-free open 

spaces and internet sales of tobacco. 

 
16. We have introduced a new target for smoking cessation, which is validated by 

carbon-monoxide (CO) monitoring. This has instilled new energy in the field to 
support people to quit. More pharmacies are providing level three smoking 
cessation services, particularly in the Cwm Taf area, and Health Boards are  
looking to increase this provision further. 

 

Pack Page 17



 

4 
 

17. The final phase of the Fresh Start Wales campaign on smoking in cars has 
been targeted, with Communities First funding, in Communities First areas and 
this has been supported by the distribution of educational materials to schools, 
and carbon monoxide monitors to local smoking cessation services. 

 
18. Prevention remains the strongest weapon in reducing incidence and mortality 

from cancer.  We must continue to appropriately target our interventions.   
 
Cancer screening services  
 

19. Screening programmes are important public health initiatives as they allow for 
the early detection and treatment of potential health problems. Rates for breast 
and cervical cancer in 2012-13 show the programmes are meeting national 
standards, with uptake for breast screening at 71.2% (standard 70%) and 
coverage for cervical at 79.5% (standard 80%).  

 
20. Meeting the 60% national coverage standard for bowel screening has proved 

challenging; during 2012-13, coverage was 50%.  However, the picture is 
improving.  Recent data has shown an upward trend in bowel screening uptake 
over the past five months across all health boards.  In February 2014, Public 
Health Wales reported uptake of bowel screening had reached 60%. 

 
21. Evidence shows uptake of cancer screening programmes is lower among more 

deprived groups. Reducinginequalityacross cancer screening programmes is a 
key priority and one that Public Health Wales’ screening division is 
addressingthrough its inequities project.  This includes developing a strategy for 
decreasing inequity in screening uptake across Wales; ensuring effective 
sustainable interventions are identified and are embedded in the community.  
The project’s main focus is bowel screening but the work also encompasses the 
other adult cancer screening programmes.   

 
Access - diagnostics and out-of-hours care 

22. Early diagnosis is the most important element of the cancer pathway, which is 

why it is important we have improved data on the recording of stage at 

diagnosis. This allows identification of where in the cancer pathway our focus 

needs to be. The data on staging does identify that too many cancers are being 

diagnosed at stage three and four. We are therefore taking action in a range of 

areas.    

23. Primary care -and GPs in particular -has a vital role to play in the early 

diagnosis of cancer. We have made this a priority in the new GP contract 

arrangements for 2014-15.  GPs will review diagnosis of cancer to identify 

opportunities to improve the system of care and remove barriers to early 

diagnosis and treatment. The work in 2014-15 will focus on lung and 

gastrointestinal cancers. 

24. We have acknowledged that some of our diagnostic waiting times are too long, 

and £4m has been invested to support health boards to meet and sustain the 

Pack Page 18



 

5 
 

eight-week standard. For patients on an urgent suspected pathway, time to 

diagnostic tests is expedited to ensure delivery of the 62-day target.  Health 

boards are implementing a range of actions to tackle this, such as developing 

more direct access for GPs. This will be a key focus for the forthcoming clinically 

driven planned care programme which was announced recently. The 

programme will also look at making improvements to outpatient and follow-up 

arrangements. This will build on the approach we have taken through our 

unscheduled care programme, thereby, taking a whole system approach which 

includes out of hours care. 

Collaborative working across sectors to achieve person centred care 

25. The annual report provides a number of examples of collaborative working 

across sectors.   

26. The cancer patient experience survey is an example of effective cross-sector 

working.  It was delivered by Welsh Government, Macmillan Cancer Support 

and the survey organisation Quality Health working in partnership with NHS 

organisations. The results of the survey are extremely positive, with the vast 

majority of patients rating their care as good, very good or excellent (97%).  

27. The results also provide a strong baseline to test our ability to achieve person-

centred care.  Meeting the holistic needs of individuals is an action in the 

delivery plan and the survey results show patients do receive advice beyond 

simply that on their clinical needs. At a national level, 68% of patients said they 

had discussed or been given information about the impact of cancer on work or 

education; 51% said they had been given information about how to get financial 

help or benefits by hospital staff, but this varied across Wales.  

28. Here, the third sector has a key role to play as the providers of rounded support 

for individuals and it is the role of health professionals to know where to 

signpost patients for further advice and support. Over the next year the cancer 

implementation group has identified, as a priority, improving the role of the key 

worker through providing greater clarity and consistency in the role as an 

enabler in supporting patients to access rounded advice.      

29. Another example of cross-sector activity is the Velindre Cancer Centre working 

in collaboration with the health boards through the cancer network to develop a 

shared approach to improve acute oncology services within Wales.   

Pack Page 19



HSC(4)-17-14  

 

Paper to note 1 

 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

Inquiry into orthodontics services in Wales 

 

Additional information provided by the British Orthodontic Society and Local Health 

Board representatives 

Pack Page 20

Agenda Item 3



Additional information from Peter Nicholson, British Orthodontic Society 

 

Health & Social Care Committee 

Inquiry into Orthodontics 

 

Follow up to Oral Evidence 8th May 2014: Peter Nicholson 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide additional information as requested and 

to clarify some points. 

 

Specialist Practice waiting lists 

We discussed the many benefits of shifting the waiting lists from those for initial 

assessment to validated treatment waiting lists and why a one off funding might not 

be appropriate. We didn’t discuss how this might be managed in a practical way. 

Any shift would have to take place gradually, probably over the course of a 3 or 5 

year contract. It would require additional funding if, during that period, current 

treatment levels are to be maintained. Even so there would need to be adjustment 

to Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) such as ratios of assessments to treatment 

starts during that period. 

The detailed management of how that process could be undertaken is exactly the 

sort of role that the Chief Dental Officer’s Strategic Advice Forum for Orthodontics 

is ideally suited. 

 

Early referrals 

I was asked to supply the data from the audit of over 600 new patients undertaken 

by the SE Wales Local Orthodontic Committee in 2011. 

 

 15% of Hospital and 23% of Specialist new patients were referred at least 1 

year early 

 13% of Hospital and 13% of Specialist new patients were referred at least 1 

year late 

 5% of patients referred to both services were deemed to be totally 

inappropriate 

 25% of referrals to hospital units should have been referred to specialist 

practice 

 12% of referrals to specialist practice should have been referred to hospital. 

 15% of hospital and 20% of specialist referrals had an IOTN <3.6 

 

The figures for misdirected referrals provide another powerful reason for bringing 

these initial assessment waiting times down. 

 

Pack Page 21



Corporates 

There is no evidence at this stage to suggest that corporates are providing an 

inferior service but their service delivery model may promote a specialist to 

therapist ratio that has, elsewhere, resulted in detrimental effects on outcome and 

patient safety. In addition, the corporate model may also result in difficulty to 

recruit quality UK specialists due the level of overhead imposed and expected 

volume of contract delivery per specialist. 

 

Designed to Smile 

I appreciate that my comments regarding Designed to Smile could have been 

interpreted as suggesting that there should be disinvestment in that scheme and 

that was not my intention. As a working clinician I am all too aware of the dental 

health problems within Wales.  

Nevertheless there are controversies within Dental Public Health regarding the 

eficacy and long term benefits of these schemes. 1,2 , and clinicians involved on the 

ground in some areas have also reported poor response rates for consent amongst 

the most deprived groups. 

While these preventive interventions are unproven at this stage I would counsel 

against disinvestment in other services in order to further increase that funding. 

 

Non-completion of treatment 

The question was asked in the second session and was tied up with true non-

completion of treatment rates and non-completion of forms. The apparently high 

rates of both groups were much discussed at the SE Wales LOC and were contrary to 

the perception of the three large Cardiff Specialist Practices. 

The point made by Darren Hills in his response para. 5.7, and perhaps 

misunderstood by Prof Richmond, is that the start and completion of treatment are 

submitted to the NHSBSA on separate forms (whether on paper or electronically). 

The slightest typographic discrepancy, never mind an actual change of address, in 

the demographics between those forms leaves them not consolidated and the start 

of treatment form left open. This has been erroneously interpreted in some quarters 

as a failure to complete treatment. This problem has been raised with the NHSBSA. 

 

Missed appointments and patient responsibility 

Missed appointments are a problem throughout the NHS and represent a waste of 

resources for hospitals and independent contractors alike. They are a source of 

frustration to clinicians with long waiting lists. 

There are various possible sanctions including charging for missed appointments 

and discontinuation of treatment. Engagement and establishing ground rules are a 

way forward and the patients in my unit sign a patient “contract” the text of which I 

have appended 

Pack Page 22



 

Retreatment 

I was surprised to hear Prof Richmond report that there are high retreatment rates 

but have no reason to doubt his expertise. My own view is that other than in 

exceptional circumstances the NHS should only offer one course of treatment. 

Indeed I had assumed that it was the case. This is another area where the Strategic 

Advice Forum for Orthodontics should look to establish common protocols and 

mechanisms across Wales and advise Health Boards. 

 

1. Kay & Locker “A systematic review of the efectiveness of health promotion aimed 

at improving dental health” Comm Dental Health 1998 Sep; 15(3): 132-44 

2. Watt RG “Emerging theories into the social determinants of health: implications 

for oral health promotion” Comm Dent Oral Epidem 2002 Aug; 30(4): 241-7 

 

Appendix 1 

 

FIXED APPLIANCE AGREEMENT 

 

Now that I have been fitted with my fixed appliance and have been given 

instructions, I am aware of the following: 

 

 I must avoid all hard or sticky sweets and food, fizzy drinks and drinks that are 

high in sugar. 

 

 I must thoroughly brush my teeth and brace morning and night and if possible 

after every meal with a suitable toothbrush. 

 

 I should use a fluoride mouthwash on a daily basis to help prevent tooth decay 

occurring during my brace treatment. 

 

 I must check my brace daily for breakages, if my brace is broken, I must contact 

the department straight away. 

 

 I must attend every appointment. 

 

 I understand that I will miss some school time during the course of my                

treatment and this cannot be avoided. 

  

 I understand that at the end of treatment I will have my brace taken off and 

retainers provided. 

 

Pack Page 23



 I understand that retention is an essential part of my treatment. 

 

 I understand that I should continue to attend my general dentist on a regular 

basis 

 

I have read the above and understand that if I do not follow the instructions my 

teeth may be damaged during treatment. My brace will then have to be removed 

before treatment is complete. 

 

I also understand that it is Health Board policy that only one course of treatment will 

be provided under the NHS. 

 

 

Parent Signature ..............................…… 

 

Patient signature ...................................... 

 

Date   ...................................... 

Pack Page 24



Additional information from Professor Stephen Richmond, Cardiff and Vale 

University Health Board 

 

Response to Chairman’s request. 

  

For the year 2013/14 there were 16832 orthodontic attendances in the University 

Dental Hospital. 

  

There were 1847 DNA’s and 735 cancellations. 

  

Many thanks, 

  

Stephen 

Pack Page 25



Additional information from Karl Bishop, Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University 

Health Board 

 

I was asked, subsequent to appearing in front of HSCC, to provide information on 

missed appointments within the hospital orthodontic services in ABMU.  The 

following data has been provided by ABMU IT department for the year 2013-14. 

 

Number of Appointments NEW 

FOLLOW 

UP 

Grand 

Total 

Grand Total 2086 14091 16177 

Missed Appointment DNA % 19.88% 10.85% 12.00% 

     

I hope this is helpful 

 

Kind regards 

 

Pack Page 26



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 27

Agenda Item 5By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into progress made to date on implementing the Welsh Government’s Cancer Delivery Plan: Evidence session 7
	HSC(4)-17-14 Paper 1

	3 Papers to note
	5 Consideration of the Committee's approach to its inquiry into legal highs

